
 

City of Newnan 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

Agenda for April 14, 2026 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting 
10:00 AM, Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers, City Hall  

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of Minutes 

 a. March 3, 2026, BZA Minutes 

3. Public Hearings 

 a. Variance Requests - 2026-04 - Diego Sierra - 40 Haynie Street 

4. Other Business 

5. Adjourn 
  

Any questions prior to the meeting 
should be directed to the Planning and Zoning Department. 

Phone:  770-254-2354 
E-mail:   tdunnavant@newnanga.gov 

 

Page 1 of 33

mailto:%20tdunnavant@newnanga.gov


   Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 03/03/2026 
 

1 

 

 

CITY OF NEWNAN 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

Meeting Minutes  
March 3, 2026  

10:00 a.m. 
 

Board Members in Attendance:   Skin Edge, Willie Walton, Ken Parker, Nathan Metts, Kris 
Lovell 

 
Board Members Absent:  Frank Flournoy, Sally Hensley                                                                                                                                                                              

                   
 
Others in Attendance:        Tracy Dunnavant, Planning & Zoning Director 
 Chris Cole, Senior Planner 
     Debbie Snider, Planning & Zoning Administrative Assistant  
     Brad Sears, City Attorney  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Edge called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 25 LaGrange Street.    
 
READING OF THE MINUTES 
 
Chairman Edge asked the Board if they reviewed the February 3, 2026, meeting minutes. Mr. 
Lovell motioned to approve the minutes. Mr. Parker seconded the motion. 
 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 
 
Public Hearing – Special Exception/Variance 2026-02 – 8 Glenn Street 
 
Public Hearing – Special Exception/Variance 2026-03 – 106 Sunset Lane 
 
Chairman Edge opened a public hearing on both locations and asked Senior Planner, Chris 
Cole, to give his report.  Mr. Cole began by explaining that both public hearings will be 
presented as one staff report but will be voted on separately. Mr. Cole stated that the applicant 
would like to operate both 8 Glenn Street and 106 Sunset Lane as personal care/group homes 
for veterans. The applicant is asking for a special exception and variance to not require the 
facility to be operated out of the owner’s principal residence and to not require the owner to 
occupy the residence. Each site is a single-family detached home. He presented maps of the 
homes, discussed the occupancy, rent, care, visiting hours, parking, ownership, operations, 
and veterans eligible for this facility. He further discussed plans for staffing, supervision of 
residents, and projected timelines. Mr. Cole also noted similar cases and their outcomes. Mr. 

Page 2 of 33



   Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 03/03/2026 
 

2 

 

Cole stated that he received a letter from a community member regarding this case and it has 
been distributed to board members for consideration. Staff believe the special exception is 
appropriate in this case, but the variance does not meet 4 of the 7 hardship standards of 
consideration, therefore, staff does not recommend this variance. Mr. Cole gave the 
recommended conditions, if the board decides to approve. 
  

1. The applicant must be issued an occupational tax certificate from the city before 
accepting any residents or operating within the city limits. Before obtaining an 
occupational tax certificate, the applicant must furnish documentation from the 
state of Georgia that it meets the standards for personal care homes under state 
law. 

2. The applicant can have no more than four residents at any given time, not 
including staff. 

 
 
Chairman Edge asked if anyone had questions for staff. Mr. Parker discussed with staff the 
differences between the proposed properties and the similar cases highlighted earlier. Mr. 
Parker and Chairman Edge questioned why the board would approve the special exception but 
not the variance. Ms. Dunnavant explained that there are multiple group care homes 
throughout our community, but those homes have an owner in residence at the care facility, as 
outlined by city ordinance. Chairman Edge asked if the homes before them are currently 
occupied. Mr. Cole stated that one is a rental and the other is empty. Mr. Parker reconfirmed 
the occupancy limit, if approved. Mr. Cole stated 3 to 6 in Class 1 with 4 being the proposal. 
Ms. Dunnavant mentioned that building code would also dictate square footage requirements. 
Mr. Parker questioned whether the Fire Marshal and City would be required to do an 
inspection before operation. Ms. Dunnavant explained that occupational tax approval is signed 
off on by the Building Department, Planning & Zoning, and the Fire Marshal. Chairman Edge 
asked if a business license has been approved. Ms. Dunnavant further stated that State 
approval is required, and the State requires City approval first. Mr. Parker requested further 
discussion regarding parking. Ms. Dunnavant referred this question to the applicant.   
 
Chairman Edge asked the applicant to come forward. Dana Freeman came forward and was 
sworn in by Brad Sears. Mr. Freeman gave an overview of his interest in this project. Being a 
long-term resident of Newnan and a veteran, he would like to provide this type of home for 
outgoing military who may need assistance transitioning into civilian life. He further stated that 
the veterans would be screened for criminal charges/convictions. Mr. Metts requested 
information on the screening process. Mr. Freeman stated that it would consist of a criminal 
background check. Mr. Metts asked if they would all be honorably discharged. Mr. Freeman 
confirmed. Chairman Edge inquired if they would be local veterans. Mr. Freeman stated that 
he works with the local, Atlanta, or Carrollton VA clinics. Chairman Edge questioned if Mr. 
Freeman had prior experience with this type of home. Mr. Freeman stated that his wife is a 
nurse practitioner and he is a veteran. He felt this would be a good business for them to 
pursue. He further stated that his wife has experience with group homes.  
 
Chairman Edge asked if anyone would like to come forward in favor of this project. Walter 
Daniel came forward and was sworn in by Brad Sears. Mr. Daniel stated that his family has 
been in Newnan for generations, and he is a veteran. He feels that this group home is a 
needed service in Newnan. He is in favor of this project, and he would like the board to 
consider approving the proposed project. He added that this is a well-researched proposal that 
was presented well. He thanked the board for their time.  

Page 3 of 33



   Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 03/03/2026 
 

3 

 

 
With no one else coming forward in support, Chairman Edge asked if anyone would like to 
come forward in opposition. Janna Melson came forward and was sworn in by Brad Sears. Ms. 
Melson stated that she understood the need for services, but she feels the mental state of the 
occupants would not be a good fit for the mostly elderly residents and children in the 
neighborhood. She feels this would change the dynamic. Ms. Melson further added that a 
business is not what the area needs. Feeling that this could potentially cause a problem and 
changes, Ms. Melson concluded that she is against this proposal. 
 
Ebony Gibbs and Mary Gibbs came forward and were sworn in by Brad Sears. Speaking on 
behalf of her mother, Ms. Ebony Gibbs stated that there is concern regarding the mental state 
of veterans. She explained that not knowing what these veterans have endured, not knowing if 
they are medicated, redoubling her concern for mental issues, she feels something could 
happen. Her mother, Ms. Mary Gibbs, spoke up and stated that children play and walk in the 
community. Ms. Ebony Gibbs also stated concern for unknown visitors in the area.  
 
Cheneria Bailey came forward and was sworn in by Brad Sears. Ms. Baily stated that she 
would be speaking on behalf of her grandmother. She explained that she understands the 
purpose and need for this type of home, but she does not agree with it being in this 
neighborhood. She feels that it disrupts the residential area, although well intentioned. She had 
concerns regarding the visitors and veterans being in the neighborhood. Ms. Bailey feels like 
there will be long-term effects. She further stated that the owner not being on site is 
concerning, and she is opposed to this project.  
 
With no one else coming forward, Chairman Edge closed the public hearing and stated that 
this project feels well intentioned, but he would like to see it elsewhere. Mr. Parker added that 
this project is a noble cause that is needed but not in this area. Mr. Walton also added that this 
project doesn’t seem to be a good fit for this neighborhood. Mr. Cole reminded the board that 
this vote will be for two different sites and the options for this vote. Mr. Parker clarified the 
options and reasoning behind each option. He further questioned who is responsible for 
making sure a homeowner is on site. Mr. Sears discussed the owner’s homestead exemption 
and how that information is used to determine the owner’s primary residence. Dana Freeman 
asked to again come forward. Chairman Edge asked if that was acceptable to everyone. With 
the board in agreement, Mr. Freeman returned and explained that he could sell a house to a 
veteran, and this is no different. He feels that allowing four veterans to live together, someone 
without transportation or occupation, should be allowed. Mr. Sears explained the difference 
between residing in a home or operating a licensed business, such a group home, from that 
home. He further discussed the option of coming before council to request a text amendment 
to the zoning ordinance regarding the owner occupancy requirement. He went on to explain 
what that process would entail. He further discussed with Mr. Freeman the difference between 
owner occupancy and round-the-clock employees.                               
 
With no further questions, Chairman Edge asked if anyone would like to make a motion on 8 
Glenn Street.          
 
Mr. Parker made a motion to deny both the special exception and variance. Ms. Dunnavant 
asked if this denial was based on this request only meeting 2 of the 7 hardship standards. Mr. 
Parker confirmed this. Mr. Lovell seconded the motion.  
 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 

Page 4 of 33



   Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 03/03/2026 
 

4 

 

 
 
Chairman Edge asked if anyone would like to make a motion for 106 Sunset Lane. Mr. Parker 
made a motion to deny both the special exception and variance, based on meeting only 2 of 
the 7 hardship standards. Mr. Walton seconded the motion.  
 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0)  
 
New Business 
 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Mr. Lovell made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 10:45 a.m. and Mr. Parker seconded the 
motion. 

 
MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 

 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Chairman Edge 

Page 5 of 33



Page 6 of 33



Page 7 of 33



Page 8 of 33



Page 9 of 33



Page 10 of 33



Page 11 of 33



Page 12 of 33



Page 13 of 33



Page 14 of 33



Page 15 of 33



Page 16 of 33



Page 17 of 33



Page 18 of 33



Page 19 of 33



Page 20 of 33



Page 21 of 33



Page 22 of 33



Page 23 of 33



Page 24 of 33



Page 25 of 33



Page 26 of 33



Page 27 of 33



Page 28 of 33



Page 29 of 33



Page 30 of 33



Page 31 of 33



Page 32 of 33



Page 33 of 33


	1. Call to Order
	2. Approval of Minutes
	a. March 3, 2026, BZA Minutes
	March 2026 BZA Minutes approved


	3. Public Hearings
	a. Variance Requests - 40 Haynie Street
	City of Newnan - 4-14-2026 BZA - 40 Haynie Street Variance Requests - Resized


	4. Other Business
	5. Adjourn

